

NORTHERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY 21 NOVEMBER 2023

Present: Cllrs Sherry Jespersen (Chairman), Tim Cook, Brian Heatley, Carole Jones, Val Pothecary and Belinda Ridout

Apologies: Cllrs Mary Penfold, Jon Andrews, Les Fry, Stella Jones, Emma Parker and David Taylor

Officers present (for all or part of the meeting):

Andy Amery (Senior Planning Officer), Jim Bennett (Senior Planning Officer), Ross Cahalane (Lead Project Officer), Philip Crowther (Legal Business Partner -Regulatory), Joshua Kennedy (Apprentice Democratic Services Officer), Steve Savage (Transport Development Liaison Manager), Hannah Smith (Development Management Area Manager, North) and Megan Rochester (Democratic Services Officer).

40. Absence of Vice-Chairman

That Cllr Valerie Pothecry act as vice-Chairman for the meeting in the absence of Cllr Mary Penfold.

41. **Declarations of Interest**

No declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests were made at the meeting.

42. Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 24th October were confirmed and signed.

43. **Registration for public speaking and statements**

Representations by the public to the Committee on individual planning applications are detailed below. There were no questions, petitions or deputations received on other items on this occasion.

44. **Planning Applications**

Members considered written reports submitted on planning applications as set out below.

45. P/RES/2023/02376 - West of Shaftesbury Road (Land on Ham Farm), Land South of Gillingham, Shaftesbury Road, Gillingham

The Case Officer provided members with an update on the Sustainability Statement. With the aid of a visual presentation including plans and aerial photographs, the Case Officer identified the site and explained the proposal and relevant planning policies to members with the inclusion of the strategic allocation plan. Photographs of the site location, layout, location plan, outline approved plans and current proposed street scenes were shown. Images of existing site photographs and views from the eastern and western sides of the Principal Street. The Case Officer also discussed the inclusion of a mix of house types, the proposed landscaping, public open space, and the proposed Locally Equipped Area of Play LEAP. The proposed phasing plans as well as both private and visitor parking was also discussed. In addition to this, the loop road, and highways layouts, including traffic calming measures, cycle routes and footways were included in the officer's presentation. Details regarding large refuse and emergency vehicles access was also discussed.

In accordance with the Local Plan, the proposal was acceptable in terms of layout, scale, appearance, and landscaping. The development would not have led to significant harm to residential amenity. Therefore, there were no material considerations which would warrant refusal. The recommendation was to grant.

Public Participation

Mr G Jackson spoke as the agent. He thanked members for allowing him to speak at committee and highlighted the hard work and collaboration with officers. Mr Jackson informed members that they had been working hard to deliver the site due to its importance and sufficient time had been given. Mr Jackson also reiterated to members that the proposal complied with policies and neighbourhood plans and had a lot of benefits. The agent also highlighted the contribution towards the housing mix, affordable housing, open space, and tree planting. He felt as though the site would be a loveable residential environment which contributed to the creation of well-designed homes. He hoped members would support the officer's recommendation.

Members questions and comments

- Reassurance that conditions including traffic calming measures, footways, and cycle paths had been addressed and implemented.
- Questions regarding street lighting strategy for each phase.
- Confirmation on building materials, particularly the use of Render.
- Landscaping and Tree Planting removal. Members questioned whether the amount planted was greater than the amount lost.
- Referred to Section 106 which outlined the Landscaping Plan.
- Clarification on the number of LEAP facilities across the site and pedestrian links to local facilities.
- Confirmation of the sustainability statement, particularly Energy Efficiency Standards.
- Questions regarding the delivery of affordable housing provision.
- Members noted the work which had gone into the development from both officer's and developers.

• Noted the importance of the site to set the tone for future developments and were pleased with the proposal before them.

Having had the opportunity to discuss the merits of the application and an understanding of all this entailed; having considered the officer's report and presentation; the written representatives; and what they had heard at the meeting, a motion to **approve** the officer's recommendation to **grant** as recommended, was proposed by Cllr Valerie Pothecry, and seconded by Cllr Belinda Rideout.

Decision: To grant the officer's recommendation for approval.

46. P/FUL/2022/07360 - Lower Woodbridge Farm, Peaceful Lane, Kings Stag, DT10 2BD

With the aid of a visual presentation including plans and aerial photographs, the Case Officer identified the site and explained the proposal and relevant planning policies to members. Photographs of the site location, proposed site layout plan and existing buildings were included. Members were informed that the proposal was situated within residential and other business units. The officer's presentation included comparisons of the existing and proposed elevations as well as details of the proposed site access. Members were informed that the site was outside flood zones 2 and 3. The key planning issues were also discussed, particularly Highways and parking issues as well as Landscape and Visual impacts. The recommendation was to grant, subject to conditions set out in the officer's report.

Public Participation

The Local Parish Council and Local Ward member addressed the committee. They informed the committee that the site was situated on a peaceful and picturesque lane which was used by walkers regularly. Cllr Hunt informed members that the proposal wasn't a redundant site and had been subject to an increase in traffic movements. She hoped members would consider conditioning working hours and not removing trees or hedging. The Local Ward member discussed concerns from residents regarding the level of traffic and highlighted the number of parking spaces. Cllr Legg felt that there were several issues with the site and approval would encourage industrial space. Both the Parish Council and Local Ward member felt as though further conditions were needed.

Members questions and comments

- Confirmation regarding building materials and colouring.
- Clarification regarding scale of floor space.
- Condition for service and delivery hours.
- Confirmation on impacts to other road users.
- Members were happy to support an application which had good diversification and supported small local businesses.

Having had the opportunity to discuss the merits of the application and an understanding of all this entailed; having considered the officer's report and presentation; the written representatives; and what they had heard at the meeting, a motion to **approve** the officer's recommendation to **grant**, was proposed by Cllr Belinda Ridout, and seconded by Cllr Valerie Pothecry, subject to conditions set out in the report and the additional condition of:

Prior to the use hereby approved becoming operational, a servicing and delivery plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written approval. The plan shall include details of:

- The maximum size of vehicles to be used for deliveries and distribution.
- and amenity of the area, the amenity of nearby residential occupiers and having regard to the narrow, single-track width of Peaceful Lane, the grass verges of which are identified as a site of nature conservation interest. The hours during which deliveries to the site and distribution of finished product from the site will take place.
- the routing to and from the site for delivery and distribution vehicles

The use shall be operated strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Decision: To grant the officer's recommendation for approval, subject to conditions set out in the officer's report and the additional condition of the servicing and delivery plan.

47. P/FUL/2023/05810 - Fairfield Car Park, Fairfield Road, Dorchester

With the aid of a visual presentation including plans and aerial photographs, the Case Officer identified the site and explained the proposal and relevant planning policies to members. Aerial photographs of the site location and images of the existing site from different locations were included. Details of the site operations during market days were also provided. Members were informed that the proposal was an enhancement of pedestrian facilities and were shown indicative environmental improvement plans which would introduce biodiversity benefits. The proposal complied with the polices of the Development Plan, therefore, the recommendation was to grant, subject to conditions set out in the officer's report.

Public Participation

Mr C Peck addressed the committee and informed members that the proposal had the objective of creating safer access for pedestrians. The applicant felt as though the proposal had good links to the car park and local town centre. He highlighted that there was still other vehicular access, and the proposal would improve public open space. With the plan for future inclusion of tree planting. Mr Peck felt that the proposal would result in safer access and hoped members would support the officer's recommendation.

Members questions and comments

- Clarification on what traffic enforcements would be enforced.
- Concerns regarding new pedestrian access and crossing.

- Confirmation on cycle route and access.
- Clarification regarding parking restrictions for market traders.
- Reassurance that market traders had been consulted.
- Members praised the scheme and felt as though it was a good enhancement to Dorchester.

Having had the opportunity to discuss the merits of the application and an understanding of all this entailed; having considered the officer's report and presentation; the written representatives; and what they had heard at the meeting, a motion to **approve** the officer's recommendation to **grant** planning permission as recommended, was proposed by Cllr Carole Jones, and seconded by Cllr Tim Cook.

Decision: To grant the officer's recommendation for approval.

48. Urgent items

There were no urgent items.

49. Exempt Business

There was no exempt business.

Decision Sheet

Duration of meeting: 2.00 - 4.24 pm

Chairman

.....

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix

Northern Area Planning Committee Tuesday 21st November 2023 Decision List

Application Reference: P/RES/2023/02376

Application Site: West of Shaftesbury Road (Land on Ham Farm), Land South of Gillingham, Shaftesbury Road, Gillingham

Proposal: Erect 34 No. dwellings (including show homes / sales area) and associated infrastructure including formal and informal public open space, following the grant of Outline Planning Permission No. 2/2018/0036/OUT. (Reserved Matters application to determine access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale).

Recommendation: GRANT subject to conditions

Decision: A) Approval of Reserved Matters, subject to the following conditions:

1. The development to which these reserved matters and accompanying details relates shall be begun not later than two years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with the provision of Section 92(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

General arrangement (Drawing No. A409-RM-01 Rev D); Longitudinal sections Sheet 1 (Drawing No. A409-RM-15 Rev B); Drainage layout (Drawing No. A409-RM-41 Rev C); Engineering layout (Drawing No. A409-RM-41 Rev D); Drainage construction details Sheet 1 (Drawing No. A409-RM-55 Rev B); Drainage construction details Sheet 2 (Drawing No. A409-RM-56 Rev B); Drainage construction details Sheet 3 (Drawing No. A409-RM-57 Rev B); Highway construction details Sheet 1 (Drawing No. A409-RM-41 Rev B); Materials layout (Drawing No. A409-RM-71 Rev D); Large refuse vehicular tracking (Drawing No. A409-RM-81 Rev F); Fire tender vehicular tracking (Drawing No. A409-RM-82 Rev F); Standard car vehicular tracking (Drawing No. A409-RM-83 Rev F); Strategic Landscape Masterplan Sales Arena (Drawing No. P22-1067_EN_0005 Rev B); Detailed Planting Plan Sales Arena (Drawing No. P22-1067 EN 0006 Rev B); Hard Landscape Plan Sales Arena (Drawing No. P22-1067_EN_0007 Rev B). All received on 21st April 2023

House type Warwick B1 (Drawing No. A1071 12); House type Amberley A1 (Drawing No. A1071 13); House type Shrewsbury 3 B1 (Drawing No. A1071 14); House type Learnington Lifestyle B1 (Drawing No. A1071 15); House type Oxford Lifestyle B1 (Drawing No. A1071 16); House type Oxford Lifestyle A1 (Drawing No. A1071 17); House type Stratford B1 (Drawing No. A1071 18); House type Stratford A1 (Drawing No. A1071 19); House type Lincoln 3 (Drawing No. A1071 20); House type Lincoln 3 A1 (Drawing No. A1071 21); House type Marlow A1 (Drawing No. A1071 22); House type Cambridge A1 (Drawing No. A1071 23); House type Harrogate B1 (Drawing No. A1071 25); House type Harrogate A2 (Drawing No. A1071 26); House type Ledsham (Drawing No. A1071 27); House type Ledsham B1 (Drawing No. A1071 28); House type Hampstead B1/A1 (Drawing No. A1071 29); House type Hampstead A1 (Drawing No. A1071 30); House type Dart 3 block floor plans (Drawing No. A1071 33); House type Dart 3 block elevations (Drawing No. A1071 34); Single garage floor plans and elevations (Drawing No. A1071 35); Twin garage floor plans and elevations (Drawing No. A1071 36). All received on 28th April 2023

House type Spey/Tavy 3 block floor plans (Drawing No. A1071 39); House type Spey/Tavy 3 block elevations (Drawing No. A1071 40). All received on 10th July 2023

Massing plan (Drawing No. A1071 03 Rev C); Housing plan (Drawing No. A1071 04 Rev C); Affordable Housing plan (Drawing No. A1071 05 Rev C); Material plan (Drawing No. A1071 06 Rev D); Enclosures plan (Drawing No. A1071 07 Rev C); Parking plan (Drawing No. A1071 08 Rev C); Refuse plan (Drawing No. A1071 09 Rev C); Hard surfacing plan (Drawing No. A1071 09 Rev C); All received on 11th August 2023

House type Shaftesbury A1 (Drawing No. A1071 24 Rev B); House type Harrogate A2 Showhome (Drawing No. A1071 26 Rev B); House type Harrogate B1 (Drawing No. A1071 38 Rev A); House type Harrogate A2 (Drawing No. A1071 41 Rev A). All received on 15th August 2023

Planning layout (Drawing No. A1071 010 Rev i); Street scenes A-A, B-B & C-C (Drawing No. A1071 11 Rev E); Detailed soft on-plot landscaping proposals (Drawing No. P22-1067_019 Rev A); Strategic Landscape Masterplan (Drawing No. P22-1067_EN_0012 Rev G). All received on 11th September 2023

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. The sales area hereby approved (Drawing Nos. P22-1067_EN_0005 Rev B; P22-1067_EN_0006 Rev B; P22-1067_EN_0007 Rev B) shall be limited to the period ending 31 December 2036, or upon completion of all development approved under 2/2018/0036/OUT and all subsequent Reserved Matters), whichever is the sooner; by which date the use of the buildings and land as show home(s)/marketing suite(s) shall have been discontinued.

At such time as the relevant temporary time period expires:

- a) the parking area and vehicular access and highway crossing (as shown within Drawing Nos. P22-1067_EN_0005 Rev B; P22-1067_EN_0006 Rev B; P22-1067_EN_0007 Rev B) must be fully removed;
- b) all hard and soft landscaping within the sales arena area shall be instated and reconfigured as per any relevant Reserved Matters details that have been approved by the Local Planning Authority, or to a specification which must first be submitted to, and agreed in writing, by the Planning Authority.

Reason: To reserve the Planning Authority control over the long term use of the land and ensure the proper and appropriate reinstatement of the adjacent highway.

4. All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following first occupation of the development; and any trees or plants which, within a period of 5 years from the completion of this phase of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless otherwise agreed with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of the amenity and appearance of the location.

5. Notwithstanding the details shown within the Strategic Landscape Masterplan (Drawing No. P22-1067_EN_0012 Rev G), all playing equipment and play features within the Locally Equipped Area for Play (LEAP) shall be provided with impact absorbing surfaces beneath and around them in accordance with specific material and specification details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to first use of the LEAP play facilities.

Reason: To ensure that the approved play facilities are fully in accordance with the requirements of the s106 agreement.

6. No development shall proceed beyond damp proof course level until full specification details of all external facing materials (including, walls, roofs and fenestration detail) have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter, the development shall proceed in accordance with the approved materials and shall also comply with the approved materials distribution plan (Drawing No. A1071 06 Rev D).

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory visual appearance of the development.

7. Prior to the commencement of the development above damp course level, a scheme showing precise details of all external lighting within all of the public open space areas (including appearance, supporting columns, siting, technical details, power, intensity, orientation and screening of the lamps) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The lighting strategy shall reflect the need to assist public safety whilst also minimising light spill to avoid harm to protected species. The approved scheme shall be implemented before the development is occupied and shall be permanently maintained thereafter. No further external lighting shall be installed on site without the prior approval, in writing, of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of the amenity of the area, public safety, protected species and biodiversity.

8. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with the detailed biodiversity mitigation, compensation and enhancement/net gain strategy set out within the Biodiversity Mitigation and Enhancement Plan (RSK Biocensus – Project No. 2483600 Rev 05 27/09/2023), subject to all new hedgerows to be species-rich native hedgerow that includes at least 5 woody species.

Reason: To mitigate, compensate and enhance/provide net gain for impacts on biodiversity.

9. Before installation of the electrical substation as shown on the approved site plans, a noise assessment shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The assessment shall include: background sound measurements at times the plant will be in operation; a comparison with the operational plant sound level; the likely external noise impact on sensitive receptors in the area, and; mitigation to prevent an adverse effect. The assessment shall be undertaken in accordance with BS4142:2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound, and also include penalties for any tonality, impulsivity, or intermittency of the plant.

The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and the noise attenuation measures shall be retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to protect the living conditions of future occupiers of residential properties.

10. Before installation of any air source heat pumps or similar equipment, a noise report from a suitably qualified/experienced person shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The written report shall follow the BS4142:2014 format and contain details of background sound measurements at times when the plant is likely to be in operation, against the operational plant sound level(s). The report shall predict the likely impact upon sensitive receptors in the area and all calculations, assumptions and standards applied shall be clearly shown. Where appropriate, the report shall set out appropriate measures to provide mitigation to prevent loss of amenity and prevent creeping background noise levels. The agreed mitigation measure shall be fully implemented and permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to protect the living conditions of future occupiers of residential properties.

11. Prior to any occupation of development hereby approved, a final Acoustic Design Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This statement shall demonstrate how occupiers of the approved dwellings will be protected from their noise climate, including anticipated traffic noise and where necessary, noise mitigation measures for the dwellings. Any such noise mitigation measures must be fully established, implemented, and maintained for the lifetime of the development, and avoid conflict with ventilation requirements.

Reason: In order to protect the living conditions of future occupiers of residential properties.

12. Prior to use or occupation of development hereby approved, a scheme showing details of the proposed cycle parking facilities shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the approved details shall be maintained, kept free from obstruction and available for the purpose specified.

Reason: To ensure provision of adequate cycle parking to support sustainable transport; in the interests of highway safety and residential amenity.

13. The development hereby approved shall be undertaken in accordance with the details set out in the submitted Stage 1, 2 and 3 Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural Method Statement Report (RSK Biocensus – Project No. 2483604 Rev 1 04/07/2023). All trees and hedges shown to be retained in the Appendix 5 Tree Protection Plan (Dwg. No. 2 Rev 2 04/07/2023) shall be fully safeguarded during the course of site works and building operations.

Reason: To ensure that trees and hedges to be retained are adequately protected from

damage to health and stability throughout the construction period and in the interests of

amenity.

14. The construction of the development hereby approved shall be limited to between the hours of 07:00hrs – 19:00hrs on Mondays to Fridays, 08:00hrs – 13:00hrs on Saturdays, with no activity on Sundays or Public Holidays.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the area and living conditions of any surrounding residential properties.

Appendix 1 – Details submitted to seek discharge of Outline Condition nos. 7 (Palette of materials), 8 (Updated Arboricultural Impact Assessment), 10 (Landscape Management Plan), 23 (Landscape and Ecological Management Plan) & 32 (Construction Environment Management Plan) of Outline Planning Permission No. 2/2018/0036/OUT It is considered that the proposed external material types are sufficient to discharge Condition 7, given this parcel's location near the Principal Street and at some distance from the countryside edge. A new condition (No. 6 above) is proposed to secure the precise specifications for these external materials.

The Arboricultural Impact Assessment has been corrected to retain the hedgerow between the LEAP and kickabout areas, and the Council's Tree Officer has raised no other concerns. Condition 8 can therefore be discharged.

Condition 10 requires Reserved Matters to include a landscape management plan, to include long term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for all landscape areas, other than small, privately owned, domestic gardens. The Council's Landscape Architect considers that the landscape management details submitted with this application are considered sufficient to discharge Condition 10.

Condition 23 requires Reserved Matters to include a landscape and ecological management plan (LEMP). The Council's Landscape Architect and Natural Environment Team has raised no objection to the submitted LEMP for this phase. Condition 23 can therefore be discharged.

A Biodiversity Construction Environment Management Plan (CEMP) has also been submitted to seek part-discharge of Condition 32. This is considered acceptable by the Council's Natural Environment Team and therefore discharges the biodiversity requirements of Condition 32 (Construction Environment Management Plan).

Application Reference: P/FUL/2022/07360 Application Site: Lower Woodbridge Farm, Peaceful Lane Kings Stag DT10 2BD

Proposal: Demolish existing timber barn. Erect new structure to the same footprint to be used as a Microbrewery.

Recommendation: Grant permission subject to conditions.

Decision: Grant, subject to the following conditions:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The use hereby approved shall be limited to that of a brewery. No additional ancillary facilities or activities including tap room, bar, public visits and retail sales shall take place from the site.

Reason: In the interests of the character of the area, to protect the amenity of nearby residential occupiers and in recognition of the narrow width of the access track and the limited area available for on-site parking.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:
1201-6 The location plan
1201-6 A The location plan
1201-7 A Block plan of the site
1201-7 Block plan of the site
1201-3 D Proposed ground floor and roof plan
1201-4 B Proposed elevations
1201-5 B Proposed Section A-A
1201-8 A Proposed external layout

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

4. The pre-development, development and post development precautionary and mitigation measures set out within sections D and F the approved Biodiversity Plan (ref DBAP22462NH) certified by the Dorset Council Natural Environment Team on 30th November 2022 must be implemented in full and accordance the specified timetable specified in the Plan.

Reason: There is a low risk that bats may be present on site and such measures are necessary in the interests of biodiversity.

5. Prior to first use of the building hereby approved, one Improved Cavity Bat Box as detailed in the approved Biodiversity Plan, shall be installed on its southwest upper gable within 1m of the gable's apex. The said bat box shall remain in place for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: This is a necessary biodiversity compensatory measure.

6. One Eco Sparrow Tower as detailed in the approved Biodiversity Plan, shall be installed on the northeast gable apex of the building hereby approved prior to the building's first use and thereafter retained for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: This is necessary biodiversity net gain.

7. Within 6 months from the date of the first use of the development hereby approved soft landscaping shall have been planted in accordance with a scheme and schedule to include two fruit trees as required by the approved Biodiversity Plan. The scheme shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval in writing prior to first use of the development. The approved landscaping shall be retained and maintained for a period of not less than 10 years from the date of the first use of the building and, if either of the trees die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased within that 10 year time period, they shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.

Reason: This is necessary for biodiversity net gain and to maintain an appropriate balance between the natural and built environment in this countryside location given that the impact of the parking and serving areas would not be acceptable without this landscaping.

8. Prior to the first use of the development hereby approved an acoustic fence shall be erected on the northern boundary as shown on the approved drawing 1201-8 A Proposed external layout in accordance with details first submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved fence shall be retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: In the interests of the residential amenity of the dwelling to the north of the site.

9. Upon and following the first use of the building hereby approved external lighting within the site shall be restricted to that included within a lighting scheme first submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In the interests of biodiversity.

10.Prior to the first use of the building hereby permitted the parking, manoeuvring and vehicular access routes within the site and the visibility splays, shall have been completed, including the carriageway top surface, in accordance with the details provided on the approved drawing 1201-8 A. The parking, manoeuvring, access routes and visibility splays shall be retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

11. Prior to the use hereby approved becoming operational, a servicing and delivery plan shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for written approval.

The plan shall including details of:

• The maximum size of vehicles to be used for deliveries and distribution.

- The hours during which deliveries to the site and distribution of finished product from the site will take place.
- The routing to and from the site for delivery and distribution vehicles

The use shall be operated strictly in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the character and amenity of the area, the amenity of nearby residential occupiers and having regard to the narrow, single track width of Peaceful Lane, the grass verges of which are identified as a site of nature conservation interest.

Informative Notes:

1. Informative: National Planning Policy Framework Statement

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF the council, as local planning authority, takes a positive approach to development proposals and is focused on providing sustainable development.

The council works with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by:

- offering a pre-application advice service, and

- as appropriate updating applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application and where possible suggesting solutions.

In this case:

- The applicant/agent was updated of any issues and provided with the opportunity to address issues identified by the case officer.

Application Reference: P/FUL/2023/05810 Application Site: Fairfield Car Park Fairfield Road Dorchester

Proposal: Construct footway along Fairfield Road and carry out vehicle restrictions works. Form pedestrian access from Weymouth Avenue.

Recommendation: GRANT, subject to conditions.

Decision: Grant, subject to conditions

Recommendation: Approve subject to the following conditions:

1. The development to which this permission relates must be begun not later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

HI1290_Location plan Location plan HI1290_1_101_DD_General Arrangement Site plan - Fairfield Road HI1290_1_102_DD_GA Copper Street Site plan - Copper Street HI1290_1_501_DD_Drainage Drainage drawing HI1290_1_1202_DD_Signage Signage Drawing HI1290_1_401_DD_Street Furniture Street Furniture drawing HI1290_1_1301_DD_lighting Street Lighting drawing HI1290_1_701_DD_Surfacing Footways and Carriageway surfacing drawing HI1290_1_1101_DD_Kerbing Kerbing drawing

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

3. Within two years of the date of the permission hereby approved, a soft and hard landscaping scheme, to include details of planting, surface treatments, street furniture and sustainable urban drainage measures to be incorporated, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented within a timescale to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interests reducing floor risk and of enhancing the visual amenity and character of the area in accordance with Policies ENV5, ENV10 and ENV11 of the Adopted West Dorset and Weymouth & Portland Local Plan.

4. Within two years of the date of the permission hereby approved, details of biodiversity enhancement measures shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the agreed measures shall be installed/provided in accordance with a timescale to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To enhance biodiversity in accordance with Policy ENV2 of the Adopted West Dorset and Weymouth & Portland Local Plan.

Informative Notes:

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF the council, as local planning authority, takes a positive approach to development proposals and is focused on providing sustainable development.

The council works with applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by:

- offering a pre-application advice service, and

- as appropriate updating applicants/agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application and where possible suggesting solutions.

In this case: The applicant was provided with pre-application advice and was updated of any issues and provided with the opportunity to address issues identified by the case officer.